REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (04-HBG-002), NASA’S FIRST A: A HISTORY OF     NASA’S AERONAUTICS PROGRAM 
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

DATED:  April 7, 2004
1. Statement of Work, Section 5.0 Proposal Guidelines, under the last bullet states: “A detailed cost plan including breakdowns for salaries…”- What is the meaning of this since the contract will be FFP? 

Answer: We will require for cost for labor categories  and a cost estimate breakdown for travel and any other ODC(Other Direct Costs). 

2. Is there a preferred format for the cost proposal? 

Answer:  There is no preferred method but, we would like to see labor and        ODC(other direct costs) broken down. 

3. Is this a small business opportunity? 

Answer: No, this procurement will be conducted as a full and open    competition.

4.  
Packaging of the Model Contract: 3 Copies are to be submitted with signatures. It is our assumption that the Model Contract is composed of the section of the RFO (From "CUT HERE DOWN....") but we did not find the required place for a signature. Should a cover page be submitted referencing the Model contract, SOW, and amendments with an authorized signature? 

Answer:  No, it was not our intention for offerors to fill in the required   information of the contract that is associated with post-award.  The only section required to be filled in by the offeror is Section K – Representations and Certifications.

5. 
Cost Proposal: The proposal is FFP. Should ODC items like air travel be included in that price, or a good faith estimate of these items as separate item? 

Answer: As this contract is firm fixed price, travel costs should be estimated at the time of proposal and presented as a seperate line item.


6. 
Audience: The book is a historical work. However, as this book will coincide with the 50yr anniversary, does NASA desire the book to support a broad readership appeal that includes the general public, or be a more focused historical text? To the extent the book has both target audiences, which is the priority?

         Answer: This work should be rigorously footnoted in keeping with scholarly, analytical standards.  At the same time, it should be written in an accessible style to appeal to a broad general readership.


7.         Scope: When emphasizing the historical significance of NASA's aeronautics programs, should that include benefits that are not directly related to aeronautics (i.e. intangibles to society)?

Answer: It would be ok to include some intangible, indirect benefits of aeronautics.  However, there is more than enough other material to cover, so aeronautical spin-offs shouldn't be the main focus of this work. 

8.         There is no cover page included with the model contract, nor is there a place to          sign in Section K. It is suggested that a cover page for the model contract be provided or a certification signature block added to Section K.  

Answer: There is no signature page in section K.  These are just Reps and Certs that will need completion, or fill in the blanks.  

9.         Contract Years and Period of Performance:

    a. Under the website Description, the period of performance is stated as a 12-month base period and two 12-month option periods. Further, the table under paragraph 12.0 on page 9 of the SOW cites a "Base Contract Year" plus "Contract Year 1" and "Contract Year 2." In order to avoid confusion, it is suggested that Contract Years 1 and 2 be renamed to Option Years 1 and 2 in the table, since the base contract year is actually contract year 1.

Answer:  They are not option years.  The period of performance is 36 months.

    b. Paragraph 14.0 on page 10 cites a performance period of 36 months. However, under a base-plus-option contract, shouldn't the performance period be stated as 12 months only for the Base Year since that will be the only year exercised upon award?

Answer: Please refer to the above answer 2(a).
10.       A milestone payment schedule is included in the SOW on page 9; however, shouldn't it also be included in Section B of the model contract?

Answer: No, Section B is identifies the deliverables required.  The payment schedule is included in Section F-Time of Delivery.

4. Model contract, paragraph K.6 includes two different size standards. Can the offeror qualify as a small business by meeting either one of the two size standards, e.g., under 500 employees?

Answer:  The size standard is $6M.

